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Strategic report

The directors present (heir strategic report an the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Review of the business

The Company is a major product and service provider to fixed and mobile lications sy in the UK, The company
continues to provides alkP, 4G/LTE and 5G networks as the evolution of telecommunications towards data continues. Our portfolio also includes
a wide range of OSS/BSS, transmission solutions, Media Delivery Network solution for telecom operators, and Customer Experience
Management (CEM). We conlinue to deliver managed services, consulling and systems integration, customer support and network rollout.

The Comp: delp d a satisf; y performance [n 2020 as it continued to improve delivery of its local services contracts and expand its
product sales to ils existing customer base. Due ta the pandemic there has been a need far increased communicalion efficiency and refiability as
the working environment has changed within the UK economy, which has presented further opportunities to our customers and our business,
although we expect mobile op still to continue to focus on increasing their operational efficiency, consolidation opportunities and reduicing

their operating expenses In a competitive trading environment.

The gross margin percentage has decreased during the year to 15.2% from 16.4% in the prior year.

Principat risks and uncertainties {Market, Technology and Business Risks)

Challenging macro i dith may ad ty impact the di d and pricing for our products and services as well as limit
our ability ln grow. Challenging economic conditions eould have adverse, wide-ranging effects on demand for our producis and for the products
of our customers. Adverse global economic conditions could cause to Ir or iniliate other cost cutting
initiatives to imp thelr fi position. This could resuh in signifi any reduced expenditures for network infrastructure and services, in which
case our operaling resufts would suffer. When d r Y, we ke specific restructuring or cost saving initiatives, however, there
are no guaraniees that such initialives will be sulficien, successlul or execuled in time to deliver any |mpmvemen|s in our eamings.

The UK tel icati industry f and is affected by many fact Including the ic envir t, decisi by
and other regarding thelr deployment of technology and thelr timing of purchases ’
The UK telecommunications industry has experienced downtums in the past in which operat ly reduced their capital spending on

new equipment, While we expect the network service provider equipment market and telecommunications services market to grow in the caming

years, the uncertalnty ‘sumounding the global economic recovery may materially harm actual market conditons. Even H macro economic

conditions improve, condilions in'the spacific Industry segments in which we participate may be weaker than in other segments. In thal case, the

results of our operations may be adversely affected. If capital expendi by ‘service providers and other customers is weaker than we

anticipate, our revenues and profitabllity may be adversely affected. The level of demand by service providers and other customers who buy our

products and services can change quickly and can vary over short periods of time, including from month 10 month. Due to the uncertainty and
i in the tet ions industry, accurately forecasting revenues, results, and cash flow remains difficult.

of our ged services busl Is difficult to predict, and requires taking significant contractual risks.
Operators increasingly outsource parts of their operations to reduce cost and focus on new services. To address this opportunity, we offer
operators various services in which we manage their networks. The growth rate in the managed services market is difficult to forecast and each
new contract cames a risk thal transformalion and integration of the operations will not be as fast or smoath as planned. Additionally, earty

are g Iow and the mix of new and old contracts may negalively affecl reported results in a given penod Contracts for
such, services normally oover several years and generate recuring revenues. However, contracls have been, and may In the future be,
terminated or reduced in scope, which has negative impacls on sales and eamnings. While we believe we have a strong position in the managed
services market, competition in this area is increasing, which may have adverse effects on our future growth and profitability.

Financial key performance indicators (KPls)

The Company's key financial performance indicators during the year were as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000 % Change
Revenue 451,340 425,229 6.1%
Gross profit 68,429 69,546 (1.6)%
Gross margin % 15.2% 16.4% {(1.2)%
Profit befors taxation ’ 10,559 15,906 (33.6)%
Curent assets as % of current fiabiliies 86.0% 91.1% (5.00%

Average number of employees 1.418 1,467 (3.3)%
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Financial key performance indicators (KPis) (continued)

F for the busls I d by 6.1% pared to prior year, the core business has remalned vastly unchainged, with an addmanal radio
contract deal with one of the major network providers. The pertarmance was in line with exp i as the

conlinued to be cautious with their expansion plans and the compstition amongst the telecommunication suppliers In the UK market remalns
intense.

Gross profil margin percentage decreased by 1%, with the gross margin decreasing 0.5% year on year. This Is dus to changes in sales mix and
the initial up-front costs experignced in new contracts.

The decrease in the Cumrent assels ralio by 5.0% was primarily due to the cash dividend payment of £16m in 2020, Cash balance was also lowsr
8t 2020 year end due to the timing of customer receipts compared to prior year, and repaymant of intercompany balances during the yaar, thereby
resulling in a net cash outllow from operating activities {(see Statement of cash flows).

o] ploy d d by 3.3% as the campany continues to focus on cast Imp to impt Its overall prafitability.
Ravenue by region:
2020 2018
£000 £000 % Change
UK 430,795 407,883 5.6%
Rest of Europe 19,930 17,307 152%
Other 615 39 1,476.9%

Revanue lor the business by region has increased by 5.6% in the core region of the UK in which it mainly operates, compared to the prior year,
this is mainly attributable to the additional radio coniract recognised during the period. The remaining regional split is income derived from
recharging services and peopls Lo the Ericsson Group rather than core services and products.

Financial position

The financial position of the Ci y is pr ted In the bal sheet, on page 14, and is summarised as foliows;
2020 2019
- £000 £000
Tolsl equily:
Tolal assets 459,002 423,385
Total fablites 360,904 310,200
98,098 113,185
Broxit
Brexit has changed the UK's relationship with the EU, the EU-UK Trade and Coaperation Agreement, which came Into effect an 1 January 2021,

pravides greater clarity an the trading relationship between the UK and the EU. Ericsson Limiled has been planning for Brexit for a number of
years through a cross-funclions! steering committee estasbEshed early in the Brexit process to ldenufy risks and produce a comprehensive
mitigation plan. To date there has been no6 maternial impact from the EU-UK Trade and Coop: g on our op and service

gs to our s. We to itor the impact of the agreement, and any legal ges 1o eler of the ag it, with
further mitigations put in place where necessary o ensure our services operate 8s normal.

Covid-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted the vital role i play In society enabling people to work remotlely, allowing
to remain operational, supporting gency services and govemmem respanses, and providing access to onlfine education. i has

accelerated Lhe pace of digital transf ion and firmed that ity is critical infrastructure that underpins society, a revarsion

back to the status quo tha! existed before the pandemic Is less likely, as for example. we will mast likely see remote working as pan of the new

normal.

During the Financial year end 31 December 2020, Ericsson's Limited (and the Ericsson Group as a whole) focus throughout has been on the

health and safety of our emplayees customers and other stakeholders. At the start of the pandemic, we transitioned the majority of our staff to

warking from home, with mini fon to our we have closely maonitored the evolution of COVID-19 as it has continued to affect
different countries and adapted our rlsk profile as required, The UK i to ease rictions of lockd during Q2 of 2021 (at
the time of signing these ). and are itoring the reproductive rate closaly. While the future effects on Lhe economy and the

business cannot be accurately predicted, to dalo there has been no disccmibie impact on the Company’s financial or operational perfarmance.
The UK management has in place a regulat meeting of lhe "Crisls Management Task Force" (CMTF) which oonﬂnuas to monitor the potential

impact and take the r yslepsilb is required in order lo minimise the risk to the pany’s op ployees and stakeho!d
alike.

After ensuring that financial, operational and liquidity f d are d and reviewed on an ongoing basis, the positive resulls
for the half year 2021 of both the company end the group wuh little financial impact being fel from the pandemic and receiving an underntaking
from the ultimate parent y, Tel LM Eri that it wilt provide all necessary financial support to the Company for at teas!
12 months from the date of app of these i its, the di have formed a judgement at the ime of approving the financial
statements that there is a b ion that the Company has adeq to continue in operational existence for the

foreseeable future. Far this reason, they have d the going basis in preparing fi
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SECR Report Summary
Company tnformation

This report for Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) has been generated on behalf of Er Limited, P d In the UK Reg
fumber 00842215. Registered address is 14Th Floor, Thames Tower, Station Raad, Reading, RG1 1LX, by The Consullus International Group.

Reporting Period

1st January 2020 - 31st December 2020
UK Energy & Carbon -

Total Emission Scope Summary

Emission Type Total Volume Calculated Emissions

(kwh) (Tonnes of COe)
Scope 1 (direct) . 8,194,082 2,200
Scope 2 {indirect) 106,236 25
Scape 3 (indirect) 175,881 41
Total ) 9,476,199 2,266

T T T T m e e s

' Percentage Split of Emissions by Scope

Scope 1 Emissions (Direct)

Emissions from activities owned or controlied by Ericsson Limited that 3Missi into the here. Examples of Scope 1 emissions
include emissions from combustion in owned or controlled boxlers fumnaces, vehicles; emissions from chemical production in owned or controlled
process equipment.

Energy Type Definition Total Volume Calculated Emissions

. (kWh) (Tonnes of CO.e)
Gas Emissions from combustion of gas 93,536 12
Transport Emissions from combustion of fuet for transport purposes 8,100,546 2,188
Tolal 9,194,082 2,200

Scope 2 Emisslons (in-direct}
Ei 1 d into the here iated with Ericsson Limited's eons(xmplion of purchased electricity, heat, steam and cooling. These

are indirect emissions that are a ¢ q of Ericsson Limited's activities, but which occur at sources that Ercsson Limited do not own or

control.

Energy Type Definition Total Volume Calculated Emissions
{kWh)} {Tonnes of CO,€)

Electricity Emissions from purchased electricity 106,236 25

Total 106,236 25
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SECR Report Summary (continued)

Scope 3 Emisslons (In-direct)

issions that are a q of Eri Limited's actions, which occur at sources which Ericsson Limited do not own or contro) and which
are not classed as Scope 2 emissi Examples of Scope 3 emissions are business travel by means not owned or controffed by Ericsson
Limited (e.g. grey fieet and rental cars).
Energy Type Definition Total Volume Calculated Emissions
(kwh) (Tonnes of COze)
Employee Owned Emisstons from business travel in rental cars or cmployee- 175,881 41
Cars owned vehicles where the Iny is responsible for
purchasing the fuel {mandalory)
Tolal 175.881 41

Percentage Split of Emissions by Energy Use

Out of Scope

All fuels with blogenic content (such as 'Dlasel and petrol {average bloluel blend)’ ) should have the ‘outside of scopes’ emisslons reported to
ensure a complete picture of an org; 's 1S is , thase are nol required to be included in Ericsson Limited's
emissions lolal,

Energy Type Total Volume Caleulated Emisslons

(kwh) {Tonnes of COz0)
Transport (e.g. cars) - 73
Total ' ] . 73

How does It compare
The company must state the emissions and energy use from previous years reports, This allows the company to lrack their emisslons to

encourage monitoring performance. As this is the first year of reporting, there are no comparisons of change from previous years. !
Emission Year 1 2020 Year 2 2021 Year 32022  Year4 2023
Tonnes of CO2e 2,266 - - -

Intenslty Ratlo
y ratios P issions data with an appropri: i metric or ial indi Er Limited has chosen to use tonnes of
COpe per £ Tumover for Hs ntensity Ratio, As this is the first year of reporting, there are no mmpansons of change from previous years.

Intensity Measurement Tumover Intensity Ratio
(E00D) (1CO%¢ / Tumover £000)
Tonnes of CO2¢ per total £m sales revenue 451,340 50

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

Ericsson Limited has laken guidance from the UK Gavernment Envi IR i idelines (March 2019), the GHG Reporting Protocol -
Corporate Standard, and from the UK Government GHG Conversion Factors !or Company Reporting document for calcutating carbon emisslons.
Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has been obtalned direclly from the companie’s energy suppliers and HH/AMR dala, where

available, for those supplies with HH/AMR meters. Transport mileage andfor fuel usage data was provided for their pany and employ

owned vehicles. COe emissions were lated using the appropriate emission factors from the UK GHG inf
and retained within the organisatians Data File for reference where required.
Energy Efficiency Action

No energy efficiency actions have been leted within the reporting year.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9E36DE02-5490-4D6C-9466-DB8B8D325A5B

ENCcsson Limieo

Registered No: 00942215

Strategic report (cantinued}

Section 172(1) Statement

The revised UK Comporate Governance Code (2018 Code’) was published in July 2018 and applies to accounting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulalions 2018 ('2018 MRR') require Directors ta explain how they considered the
interests of key and the broad set out in section 172(1) (A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 ('S172') when performing
their duty to promate the success of the Company under $172.

The S172 statement focuses on matters of strategic importance to the Company, and the level of information disclosed s conslstent with the size
and the complexity of the business. When making dedisions, each Direclor ensures thal they act in the way they consider, in good faith, would
most likely p the C; y's for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard (amang other matter) to:

red

$172(1) (A} “The likely q of any d 1 In the long term”

The Directors understand the business ‘and the evolving environment in which we operate, including the ges of igating th the
telecommunication industry. With the evolution of 5G and beyond, we are moving technological boundaries forward to creale the blggesl
Innovation platform ever. The number of connected applications and devices will continue to increase éxponentially, so too will the economic
value which relies on their integrity. Intelligent networks wiill camry an abundance of industry and consumer data, changing the nature of business
competition. Securing those assels will make future network security key to ensuring trustworthiness of society and industry.

$172(1) (B) “The interests of the company’s employees”

The Di gnise that our employ are (i { to our busi and defivery of our strategic ambitions. The success of our business
depends on atiracting, retaining and motivating employees. See Employee consultation in the Director’'s Report.

During the past three years Ericsson Group has sel the foundalion end re-designed our ways of working to creale an even more positive
employee experience in support of our company transformation. During 2020 we have continued our focus on the following areas: Ethics and
compliance; Succession and people planning; Perf: mar 1; and Employee engag t

§172(1) (C) “The need to foster the pany’s busl relati hips with suppllers, customers and others"

Our business model Is built to manage changing markel requirements and lo capture new business opportunities. Customer focus and motivated
emplayses are key to drive our business, create slakeholder value and to build a slronger company long term. With an agile and efficlent
business modet, we create value for our stakeholders by providing industry leading, high performing, sustainable and cosl-efficient solutions to our
cuslomers.

The Company's business partners, including suppliers adhere to Ericsson’s Responsible sourcing program, covering four main areas: business
ethics and anti-corruption, human and labour rights, occupational health and safety and environmental management. Ericsson offers free online
training to ensure compliance.

§172(1) (D) “The impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment”

Sustalnability is central to Edicsson's purpose. We are committed to creating positive Impacts in society and reducing risks to Ericsson, our
customers and society through our technology, our solulions and the expertise of our peuple The work is a continuous joumey and our
Sustainability and Corporate Responsibility strategy covers three focus areas: Responsible b Envir | sustainabifity and Digital
inclusion.

Ericsson Limited adheres to the Ericsson Group policy on Sustainability and Corporate Responsibility. For more information on this please read
our S ility and Corp Responsibility Report 2019 on pages 173-213 within the PDF of the Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson Group
2020 Annual Report (https:/iwww.efi 1494193 1A Id \Ls/2020/annual-report-2020-en.pdf).

Proactive management of topics relaling to climate action and 1t is a core % of E ‘s Group sustainability strategy. We
Ievemga a dircular economy {design, use, re-use, recycle) approach in everything we do; and work to reduce environmental impacts and
ions from our operations, our portfolio and in sociely.

S$172(1) (E) “The desirabllity of the company malntalning a reputation for high standards of business conduct”

Eri Group's p is to emp an Intelligent, sustainable and d world in ways which are iy, enviror ly and
sociafly responsible. Ericsson Group has clear frameworks, such as Code of Conduct, Code of Business Ethics & Compliance manuals, and its
Modem Slavery Statements, to ensure that its high standards are maintained both within Ericsson and the business relationships we maintain.

Please visit the appropriate corporate s for more inf ion on the following subjects:

* Telef i get LM Eri Group 2020 Annual Report (please see pages 131-213 within POF)
https:/www.eri c 4193/, 12020 port-2020-en.pdf

« Code of business ethics - https:/Avww.eri 1.com/en/about-tis/corpo g /code-of-ethi
« Code of conduct for suppiiers - hitps:/Awww. ericsson.com/en/about-us/corporate-go' /cade-of-ethics

- Occupational Health & Safety policy (please see pages 188-189 within PDF)
htips:/iwww.eri com/494193/. flocalir 12020, I-report-2020-en.pdf
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Section 172(1) Stat t (conti d)

S$172(1) (F) "The need to act fairly as bety N bers of the pany”

After welghlng up all relevant factors, the Directors consider whxch course ol action best enablas delivery of our strategy through the long-term,
Lgking into consideration the impact on all stakeholders ( . employ society and shareholders).

In discharging its section 172 dutles the Company has regard to the factors set out above. The dlrectors also take Into account the views and
interests of a wider set of stakeholders when making decisions. During the year the Di ition to enable them to consider the
lrnpact ‘of the compam(s decislons on its key ! IS’ inf jon was distri in a range of different formats, induding through
reports and pi on our fi ial and jonal perf \cial KPis and risk matters. We acknowledge that every

ducision wa make will not necessarily rasult In a poslllve atitcome for all of our stakeholders and the Directars have to make difflcult dedislons
based on compsting priorities. By considering the company’s purpose and values, together with its strategic priorities and having 8 process in
place for deciston-making, we do, however, alm (o balance those different perspectives.

As is normal for large panies, Di have gated authority for day-to-day manag of the p o its key G "
executives and then engage g/ Lin sul!mg. ppioving and g tho ion of the strategy and related policies. During the year,
we reviewed the company’s financial and op g kiy jons (if any) relating to the commitments which were
rnade as pant of the Enusons Group DPA with the US Department of Justice; regulatory, funding and p j of

and d y and Inclusion. The Directors received papers dnd reports on these matters which were thon raviewed,
discussed and approved, as necessary.

The impact of the pany's activities on our stakeholders, Including our g and llers Is an Imponamconsldcmuon when
making decisions. The Di will j goge directly with stakcholders on certaln issues, but the size and distibution of our
keholders and of T iebol: LM Eri Group means thal stekeholder engagement often lakes place al an operational or group
fevel. This Is deemed as being a more e efficlent and effactive approach, also helping to achiave a greater positive Impact on environmental, social
and other issues than by working alone as an individual company. For delails on how the Eri Group engages with Its stakeholders and how
slekeholder interests and sechon 172 duties have been idered in r g certain key gic decisions, please see pages 182-195 of the
T get LM \ Group 2020 Annual Repon. whichis avanlabla from:
hitps:/Awww.ericsson.com/494183/; v v 12020/annuat-report-2020-eri.pdf

As set out sbove, decisions laken by the Directors consider the interests of our key and the il of thase decisions. The
Diractors of tho Company fec! that there has anly been o singular cxample of what they consider is a key dacision that has been made in regard
to the matters set out In section 172(1}(a)<) when dischiarging our section 172 duties and the éffect of that on declslons taken by it is the payment
of the dividend. Throughoul tha year ths Di d the stréngth of the Company’s bal sheet and future pruspects relative lo
inties in the During the ial year ended 31st D ber 2020, the Direct: ded an Interm dividend

ol £16 million. in making this declsion the Directors considered a range of factors. These included the Iong-term viability of the Company; its
expected cash now and financing requirements; the finencial position of the Eci Pension Sch the ongoing need for strategic
in our busl and L and the pricing exp i of its t and iers, as well as the expectations of our

members,

Approved for issue by the board of directors

DocuSligned by:

Liam BPbriun

517ABB328BAE4DG...

Mr L O'Brien
Dlrector
23/07/2021
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Directors' report
The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Principal activities

The Company is a privale company limited by shares and incorp d and iciled in England, United Kingd iis reg d office and
principal place of business is the 14th Floor, Thames Tower, Station Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 1LX.

Golng concern

The 1s and medla ies are highly prioritized industries in times of crisis and currently the Ericsson group (NASDAQ: ERIC)
delivers under the Business as usual mode. During the COVID-19 pandemic, our teams ensure that critical infrastructure and therefore critical
services for customers run unintérrupted 24/7. Our ability to maintain services becomes even more vital in limes like we all pass now as we have
a ibility to our and wider soclety to ensure that tefecommunication and medfa networks remain up and ruaning (o the highest
standard.

Cunrently we run business at same ity and the continue to be honored according to the plan, without any discontinuance.
Of course, the maintenance services are the highest focus in this period but also the ather business lines continue as per usual in ‘order to
strengthen even more the telecommunication and media Infrastructure in the counlry. At this point we have nol received any ] g
from our customers which might have an immediate impact on our business.

While this is slill an evolving situation at the time of issuing the financial statements of the Company‘ we consider that this crisis will nol have an
immediate impact on our business in the country and as well in the business sector we op . H the fution is highly unpi e and
the management will continue to menilor the potential impact and take the necessary sieps to minimize any potannal er!ects

Alter ensuring thal financial, operational and liquidity for i are d and reviewed on an ongoing basis, the positive results
for the hall year 2021 of both the company and the group wnlh litle financial impact being felt from the pandemic and receiving an undertaking
from the utimale parent company, Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson, thal it will provide all necessary financial support to the Company for at least
12 months from the date of approval ol these financial statements, the directors have formed a judgement gl the time of approving the financial
statements that there is a p ion that the Company has ad resources 1o continue in operalional existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they have ad d the going basis in p ing financial 3

Future developments

Ericsson’s vision is of a Networked Society where everything that benefits from being connected will be connected. During the transformation to
the Networked Soclety clear customer segmentation Is taking place as operators assume different roles In the ransforming information and
communications technology (ICT) markel. Eri supports its cust in the new ICT landscape by using the advantages of technology
Ieaders)up. a posilion which has resulled in a compelitive portfolio of radio networks, core networks and backhaul solutions. Since network
performance has become the prime driver of consumer loyalty, and increasing customer loyalty has significant benefits in terms of g g long-
term value, there Is also a demand for network design and optimization expertise to maintain high-quality of service, Including aocessiblmy speed
relxabdm'/ and high-quality user experience.

Ericsson has Identified three eémerging and strategic operator segments where conneclivity is, and will continue to be, the foundation of business:
Network developer; Service enabler; and Service crealor.

Network developer: Ericsson add the demands with solutions for high-perf e network architecture including mobile infrastructure,
software-defined networking (SDN) techinologies, r rk functions (NFV) and Indoor connectivity.

Service bler: Eri d di for a hlgh-perionnlng network, billing, customer care and service assurance with its OSS and
BSS p and professional services offering. These offerings cater to needs for controf and management of operations and the identification
of new revenue streams. included in Ericsson’s offerings are also the Network-enabled Cloud, rk funclions virtualization (NFV) and software-
defined ing tect ies thal enable gt and jon across network resources and cloud applications.

Service creator: Ericsson offers intelligent nodes and platforms, and tools to form the platf including service capabilities that fit the
demands of service creators and enable them to expand lheir business. Ericsson also addresses service crea!or needs by providing technology
that brings cloud capabilities into the network, with the flexibility and icil d to deploy softy pp W and wh they
are needed. Offerings include Smart Meter Managers and loT Security.

.

ployee engagement and bt refationships

Please see the Strategic Report S172(1) (8) and S172(1) (C) on page 6.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Dividends

An interim dividend payment of £16.0m (2019: £12,5m) was madu during the year and the directors have nol declared a final dividend in respect
of 2020 (2019: £nil).

Post balance sheet event

There were no matenal or signifi icant events that occurred in the period from 31 December 2020 1o the date of reporting that would require
adjustment to or disck in the financial

Dircctors and thelr. Interests

The directors af the company who were In office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows:

Mr L O'Brien

Ms M Lindgren (reslgned on 1 October 2020)
Mr R Peacock

Mr J Griffin (appointed on 1 October 2020)
Ms K Ainley (appointed on 3 February 2021)

None of the directors held any interest In the share caphal of the Company or that of Its UK parent company, Ercsson (Holdings) Limlted, at any
time during the year. During the year and at the date of app I of the the C y held third party Indemnity cover in
respect of directors. .

The directors are the only kay management personnel of the Company and their ion is included in the disclosure in note 19 of the
finaniclal statements:

Fi ial risk I} t

The Company's financial risk g policy Is primarily driven by Ericsson Group Treasury. The principal role is to ensure thal appropriate
financing Is in place to manage lhe Company’s hqu:dnty ns wnll ns financial assets and fiabilities, and to eonlml financial risks exposures in 8
manner 1L with rlying risks and P The Company doas not any local hedging activities.

See Note 17 for further delails on foreign exchange, interest rate and tiquidity risks.

Disabled employees

Applicalions lor employ by disabled persons are fully considered, b g in mind the aptitudas of the i d. in the event of
members of staft becoming disabled every efiort is made to ensure that thelr employment with the ¢‘ pany inues and that approp
training Is arranged: It is the policy of the Company that the lrammg. career d oy and pi of di d persons should, as far 83

possible, be idenlical to that of other employees.

Employee consultation

The Company places considerable value on the ir 1t of ils employ and has continued W keep them inf i on

them as cmployccs and on the varlous factors aff g the perf of the Company. This is achleved through forma) and lnfomlal
ting ployee repr are i regu!arly on a wide range of mallers aflecting their current and future interests.

Emgployees are angaged with on a group wide basis via Voice Surveys, where by the e t is del d via dopar heads. Those

surveys serve as a mulll directional too! to feedback to the Eri group on subj that malter and aflect the staff and their interests and

di tons are impl d on imp and aclions ngeded.

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Company's policy Is to settle terms of pay with when agreelng the terms of each Jon, ensure that llers are
of payment and that the Company abides by the terms of payment. :

Trade creditors (including intercompany) of the Company at 31 December 2020 were equivalent to 99 days purchases (2019: 57 days), based on
the ge daily t invoiced by ficrs during the year.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the fi ial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regufation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare for each fi year. Under that law the direclors are required o prepare
the group financial stat in with internati in conformity wilh the req of the Companies Act
2006 and Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (iFRS Standards) adopled pursuant to Regu|aunn (EC) No 1606/2002 as il applies in the
European Unlon, The financlal stalemenls also comply with Intemational Financlal Reporting Standards as Issued by the IASB. . Under company
law the di must not app! the (i unless they dre satisfied that they givé a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the profit or loss of the company for.that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

- seléct suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently: .
+ slate whether applicable IFRSs as issued by the IASS and as adopted by the European Union have been lollowed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explamed in the financial statements;

: makKe judgenmients and that are and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless il is inappropriate o pi that the pany will continue in

The dir are nsible for keeping adequato ai ing records that are sufficient to' show and explaln the company’s transactions and
disclose with bl y at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statementis
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company arid hence fof taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and otheriregularities.

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each director In office at the date the Direclors’ Report is approved:
« 50 far as the director is aware, there is no rel audit inf ion of which the pany’s auditars are ; and

« they have taken all the staps thal they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to estabfish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006 in the case of each directar in office at the date the directors' report, it has been
approved that

* so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the y's auditars are ; and

« they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish (hat the company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Independent auditors

Fallowing a decision by the pany’s ultimate parent enlity ta appoint a new audit firm for the year ending 31 December 2020, and the approval
of Deloitte as the new auditor at the ulLImaLe parent company’s AGM on 31 March 2020, Dekiitte LLP will be appointed as audilors of the entity for
the financial year ending 31 December 2020.

Approved for issue by the board of directors

DocuSigned by:
Liam Bhrivn.
517468 AEADS
Mr L O'Bren
Director
23/07/2021
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Ericsson Limlited

Raport on the audit of the financial statcments

Oplinion
In our optnion the fi | of Eni Limited (the ‘company’):
« give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affalrs as at 31 December 2020 and of [ts profit for the year then ended;
= have been properly prepared In accordance with intemational accounting standards in conformity with the requi of the C
ACt 2606 and htematlonal Financlal Reparting Standards (IFRSs) as Issued by the Intemationat Accounting Standards Board (IASB); and
« have been prepared in d wilh the requi of the C les Act 2006.
Woae have audited the fi iol 2 which pri
« the income statoment;
« the of prehansive i

« the balance sheet;

- the statement cashflows

« lhe slatements of changes In equity; and

« the related notes 1 to 21.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied In thelr preparation is applicable law and Intemational In ity
with the requi its of the C les Acl 2006 and IFRSs 8s issued by the {ASB.

Basis for opinlon

We conducted our audh In d with ional Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applit law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are furthér described in the auditor's responsibifitics for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independenl af the company in accordance with tha ethical requi that aro rck to our audit of Lhe financial statements in the
UK, i g the F Reporting Council's {the 'FRC's') Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibifities in
accordance wim these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sullicen! and appropnato to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the fi dal wo have luded that the directore’ use of tha going basis of ing in the proparation of tho
financial slatements is appropnale

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainlies relating to' evenls or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubl on the company's abifity to conlinue as a going concem for a periad of at feast twelve months from when
the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsiblities and the responsibliities of the directors with respect lo going concem are d ibed in the rel ions of this report.

Other information

The other information i the inl i tuded In the annual report , other than the financlal statements  and our auditor’s report
h The di are le far the ather Information contained within the annual report. Our opinian on the financis! statements does
not cover the other Information and, except to the exient otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not exp any form of
conclusion thereon.

Our responsxuxlxly is o read the other information and, in doing so, consider whemar the other information ls malerialry nconsistent with the

or our Aedg oh'amed in the course of the audit, or oth o be If we identify such
ial ir i ies or app: , we are required to di i whelher this gives nse o a malerial misstatement in
the fii i h tves. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 8 material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that factl
Woe have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibllities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ resp ifilics W, the di are ible for the preparation of the fi igl and
for being satisficd that they give a truc and fair vicw, and for such intemal control as the di d: ine is y to enable the
prepa of financlal that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial siatements, the di are resp > for g the pany’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing,
as appﬁcable matters related to going concem and usmg the gomg concem basus of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
company or lo cease i or have no i bt to do 'sa.

Auditor's responsibliities for the audit of the financlal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whather due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, butis
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or emor and are Idered ial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could nably be d to Infh the
economic decisions of users taken on the basls of these financial slalemems

A further iption of our ibilities for the audit of the financal slatements is located on the FRC's websiter at
www.frc.org.uk/audt ibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

P
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Ericsson Limited {continued)

Extent to which the audit was idered capable of detecting lregularities, including fraud

t larities, including fraud, are i of non: pli with laws and regulations. We design procedures in fine with our responsibitities,

ouuxned above, to delecl malenal misstatements in respect of imegularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
g Imegularities, i g fraiid Is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s ntation of thelr policles and
procedures felating to fraud and compliarice with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of imegularities.

We cblained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified the key laws and regulations
that: :

+ had a direct elfect on the ination of material its and disclosures in the financial statements. These included UK Companies
Act, pensk gl tax legislation; and

- do nat have a direct effect on the financial statements bul compliance with which may be fundamental to the company's ability 10 operate
or to avoid a material penalty. These mcluded Employment rights, Equality Act, Health and Safety al work, Trade Union and Labour
relations and Environmental Protection Act. .

We discussed among the audil engag ¢ team includil 31 internal specialists such as tax, IT and penslons specialists regarding the
opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organlsation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur In the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our specific. procedures performed to
address it are described below:

The risk that the entity does not account for its material revenue contracts in dance with the icable financial reporting framewark in
particutar where they contain measurement elements that courd result in a material misstatement. In response {o the risk, we have identified
controls to ensure contract and g it of identified performance obligations are accurately set up. We have
tested design, impl ion and operating eff of rel t Is that are in place to ensure thal the accounting treatment of
contracts are correctly ing lo the and IFRS 15. Our substantive testing procedures include assessment of the
accounting reatment with IFRS15 and ding Hf itis in with IFRS 15 .

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override. In
addressmg the risk of fraud through management overide of controls, we tested the approprialeness of jounal entries and olher ad|uslments

tether the judg ts made In making accounting estimates are indicalive of a p tial blas; and evaltuated of
any significant transactions that are unusual or oulside the normal course of business.
In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:
« reviewing financial stalement disclosures by testing to supporting di ion to assess pliance with provisions of relevant laws
and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;
- performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement due
to fraud;
« enquiring of management, internal audit and inchouse legal counsel ing actual and potential litigation and claims, and instances of
non:compliance with laws and regulations; and
+ reading mii of ings of those charged with governance; and reviewing Intemal audit reports, and reviewing any correspx j with
HMRC.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Oplnions on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2006
In our opinfon, based on the work undertaken in the course of lhe audit:
« the information given'in (he slm(eg;c report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consi; with the t and
» the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in ac with applicable tegal requirements,
In the light of the knowledge and und: ding of the company and its environment abtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any
material misst in the strateglc report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companles Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent pany, or returns ad te for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

« the fi i ts are not in ags 1 with the ing ds and retumns; or

« certain dis es of directors’ ion specified by law are nol made; or

« we have not received ali the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Woe have nothing to report in respect of these malters.

Use of our report

This report is made solsly to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the (ullest extent permitted by law, we ‘do nat accept or assume respansibility to anyone other than the company and
the company’s members as a body, for our audil work, for this repont, or for the opinions we have formed.

James Hunter {Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte, Statutory Audltor

4th Floor, Abbots House,
Abbey St,

Reading,

RG1380

Date: 23/07/2021
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Income statement
Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2018
Notes £000 £000
Revenue 2 451,340 425,229
Cost of sales {382,911) (355.683)
Gross profit 68,429 69,546
Administration and selling (54,888) (52,537)
Operating profit 3 13,540 17,009
Finance expense 7 (6,374) (6,897)
Financae income 7 84 139
Net lon scheme finance income 18 3,309 -5,655
Prafit before taxation 10,558 15,906
Tax 5(a) {5.572) 3.430
Profit for the fingnclal year 4,887 19,336
All of the above resulls relate lo conlinuing sctivities.
Statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 December 2020
2020 2019
Notes £000 £000
Profil for the financial year 4,987 19,336
Other comprehensive Income / (expense)
Rems that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit pensian plan 18 (4,246) (50,834)
_Tax on item that will ot be reclassified to profit or loss 5(c) 172 9,028
Total compt ive i ! {expensa) 913 (22.470)

The total comprehensive income above is attributable to the Gwners of the company.

13
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Balance.sheet

At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Notes €000 £000
ASSETS )
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 4,570 5,503
Right-ofuse assets 16 10,471 15,281
Trade and other receivables 10 200 -
Pension asset 18 187,420 ; 174,761
] ’ 202,661 ) . 195,545
Current assets
Inventories 9 23322 22,989
Contract assets 2 13,480 14,861
Trade and other receivables 10 - 155,945 162,741
Cash and cash equivalents 11 63,594 27,249
j 256,341 227,840
TOTAL ASSETS 459,002 423,385
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Total equity
Share capital 14 52,600 . 52,600
Relained eamnings 15 45,498 60,585
- 98,006 113,185
Non-current liabllitles
Lease liabiliies 16 10,376 13,780
Pension liabilities 18 26,745 23,233
Deferred tax 5 24,222 21,099
Provisions : 13 1,608 ) 1,841
62,951 . 60,052
Current liabilitles
Provisions 13 4,451 5,395
Contract liabilities 2 48,762 34,018
Lease liabifities 16 3,309 5,623
Trade and other payables 12 240,431 205,112
297,953 250,148
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 459,002 423,385

The financial statements on pages 13 to 38 were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on their behalf
by Mr L O'Brien on 23/07/2021. Amendments to the financial statements are not parmitted after'approval.

DocuSigned by:
Liam Blvivn

517AB8328BAE4DS...

Mr L O'Brien (Director)
Registered No: 00942215

14



DocusSign Envelope ID: 9E36DE02-54904D6C-9466-DB8BBD325A5B
Encsson Limiea

.

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2020

2020 2019
Note(s) £000 £000
Operating activities
Profil before laxation 10,559 15,906
Adjustments for:
Depraciation - Property, plant and machinery B 460 1.278
Depredation - Right of use assets 3,280 5,330
Impainment - Right of use assels ’ - 2,742
Asset wrile-off as scrap 142 -
{Galn)/ loss on disposal of property, planlhnd agquipment (79) (53)
Finance Income (84) (139)
Finance costs 6,374 6.897
R&D credil {1,260) <
Changes in operating net assets
Inventories 9 {333) 19,792
Conlracl assets 1,381 3,713
Trade and other receivables 6,796 857
Contract fiabilities 15,744 891
Trade and other payables 34,353 12,191
Provisions 13 (1.277) {27,811)
RD lax refund . - 936
Pensk (13.405) {15.403)
Cash generated / (used in) from aperations 62,651 27,127
Cash Inflow / (outflow) from operating activitics 62,651 27,127
Investing activities
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment 8 ({69) (341)
Disposal of fixed assets 480 -
Cash outflow from investing activiti 41 (341)
Financing activities
Interast paid 7 (5.606) (5.865)
Interest on lease liabililies (768) (1,032)
Princlpal elements of lease paymants {4.427) (3.839)
Interest received 7 84 139
Dividends paid 6 (16,000) {12.500)
Cash outflow from financing activities (26,717) {23,097)
Net change In cash : . 36,345 3,689
Cash and cash equivafents, beginning of year 27,249 23,560
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 11,12 63,594 27,249

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, lhe cash and cash equivatents al lhe end of lhe year include amounis held in
foreign currencies of £63.6m (see note 11), and an overdraft balance of £nil {see note 12).

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Share capital Retained Total
eamings equity

Notes £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2020 15 52,600 60,585 113,185
Transactions with owners 6 - {16,000) (16,000)
Profit for the (inancial year 15 - 4,987 4,987
Olher comprehensive expense - (4.074) (4,074)
At 31 December 2020 52,600 45,498 98,098
Al 1 January 2019 : . 15 52,600 95,555 148,155
Transactions wilh owners 6 : (12,500) (12,500)
Profit for the financial yéar 15 - 19,336 19,336
Other i P - (41,806) {41,806)
At 31 December 2019 52,600 60.585 113,185
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The C y is a private y, limited by shares and incorparated and damiciled in England, United Kingdom. Us registered office and

principat place of business is the 14th Floor, Thames Tower, Station Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 1LX.

The principat acuvmes of the Company are the deslgn supply, Installation and service of telec and rk services.
The Company p! plete solutions for op and c from fixed and mobile networking, i W rk platf [
management solutions, through to end-user applicalions and service delivery.

The fi i of the Ce have been prepared in dance with EU (European Union) adopted Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) and the Companles Act 2006 applicable to limited companles reporting under
IFRS.

The plindpal'accounling policies P inthe preparation of these fi ial stat are set out below, These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention excepl as described in the accounting policy on financial
instruments and plan assels related to defined benefit pension plans.

The have been prep an the golng concem basls as the ullimate parent con T 1 L M Ed has
stalted il will provide all necessary financial support to the Company for at least 12 months from the dale of approval of these financial statements.

The ion of fi
to ise its

ents in ity with IFRS requires the use of certain crilical accounting estimales. It also requires
inthe p of lying the accounting policies.

prep

Going concem

After ensuring that financial, operational and liquidity forecasting updates are maintained and reviewed on an ongoing basis, the positive resulls
for the haif year 2021 of both the company. and the group with little financial impact being fefl from the pandemxc and receiving an undertaking

from the ulimate parent pany, Telefona} LM Eri , that It wilt ide afl r y fi ial support to the Company for at least
12 months (rom the date of app | of these ial stat ts, lhe i have formed a judgement at the time of approving the financial
statements that there is a bl ion that the Comp has adeq resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they have adopted the gaing basis in preparing ial V

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2020

New standards, amendments and Interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are nol mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting periods and
have not been early adopted by the group. These standards are not expected lo have a material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on ble future trar i

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 - Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
The Phase 2 Amendments are effective for annual perfods beginning on or alter 1 January 2021 allhough early application Is permitted. The

practical expedient and retiefs available regarding ges to effeclive interest rates and hedge relationships do not apply to the Company.
The Group Is ly the need to ional and syslem changes to ensure that valuation and setllement of instruments
affecled by new benchmark rates can be handled within lhe Internal reporting p This e is not exp d to have a significant impatct

on the financial repumn_g process.

IFRS 3 - "Business Combinations"
ISAB issued an d to IFRS 3 B C with ref to the G tual F k, with an effective date 1 January
2022

1AS 16 - "Property, Plant and Equipment”

Proceeds befare Intended Use, which prohibils entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing thal asset to the location and condilion necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an enlity recognizes the proceeds from selling such liems, and the costs of producing those items, in

profit or loss. Amendment has an effective date 1 January 2022

IAS 37 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabitities and Contingent Assets"

Requirement to specify which costs an entity needs to include when ing whether a is onerous or loss-making. The amendments
apply a “directly related cost approach.” The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services Inclide both incremental cosls
and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and administrative casts do nol relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. Amendment has an effective date 1 January 2022,

IFRS 17 - “Insurance contracts”

The new slandard seeks to establish principles for the recognition, meast P ion and } of i contracts. The new
standard has effective date 1 January 2023.
The Company has not yel finalized the evaluation of any impact on financial result or position from the above amendments.
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Notes to the financia! statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flow is prepared in acoardance with the indirect methad. Cash and cash equivalents cansist of cash, bank, and sher-term

Investments that are highly liquid y i with a ing y of three months or less at the date of acquisition,
Forelgn currency tr ions and tatl
Foreign i are fated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resuliing from the settiement of such transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabllites denominated In forelgn currencies are reécognised in the incoms statement.

Revenue recognition

Revenue primarily represents the value of goods and services supplied 1o customers during the period inclusive of trade discounts and rebates,

and tuding VAT. R also il i with group companies ranging from supply of goods, services and cost recharges.
Revenue Is recognlsed with reference to afl significant contractual terms when the product or servlce has been delivered, when the revenue
amount is fixed or d 1 and when collection is raasanably assured. Specific f and p crileria may impact
the timing and am of revenue recognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise acquired intangible assels related lo business cumbinations, such as patants, relations, ks and

At initial ition, acquired intangible assets are slated at falr value and subsequent to initial recognition these assets are stated al
initially recognised amounts less d Jon and any Impai

Amartization of acquired inlangible assels, such as patents, customar ralations, brands and sofiware, is made according to the straight-line
method over teir estimated useful tives of ten years.
The Company has not recognised any Intangiblo assets with indofinite uscful iifo.

tesls aro p d wh there Is an indication of possibl An I loss Is d If the carmrying amount
of an asset or its cash-g g unit ds its b Tho ble amount Is the higher of the value In use and the falr
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows afler tax are discounted lo their present value using an aller-lex
discount rale that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Application of after lax
amounts in calculation, both in relation to cash flows and discount rata Is applied for calculating dlscount rate include a tax component. The after
tax discounting, applied by the Company Is not materally different from a discounting based on befare-tax future cash flows and before-tax
discount rates, as required by IFRS.

losses recog
oxists. An Impalrmant loss Is reversed if there has been a change In the estimates used to determine the recoverabla amounts and if the
recoverable amount Is higher than the camrying valie, An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount after
reversal does not exceed the camylng amount, net of amortization, which would have been reported If no Impairment loss had been recognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plam and equipment are stated at cost less accumulaled and any impali losses. Depreciation and any impaiment
ges are included in Administration and selling D is provided on all property, plant and equip at rates calculated to
write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a stralght-ine basls over its expected useful ife, at the following annual rate:

Leasehold bulldings - Term of lease
Plant and machinery - 2010 ycars
Software development costs - 3to 4 years

Assets under.construction - All directly attributable costs necessary to bring the asset to its required working condition are capilafised. These may
include both intemal and extemal costs. When the constructed assel is completed and put into use, accumulated ‘assel under construction' costs
are capitalised and depreciated within their respective categories.

The assels restdual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate at lne end of each reporting period. The carrying values of

property, ptant and equipment are reviewed for impaiment whan events or ges in di the carrying value may not be
recoverable.
Gains and losses on disp are d ined by ing the ds less cost to sell with the camrying amount and are recognised within

Administration and selling expenses in the income statemerll

d in prior perlods are assessed at cach reporting date for any Indications that the loss hos decreased of no longer-
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Accounting policies (continued)
Leasing

Prior to 1 January 2019, Renlals under operating leases are recognised in the income staiement on a straight line basis over the lease term,
even if the payments are not made on such a basis. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are similarly
‘spread on a straight line basis over the lsase term.

From 1 January 2019 onwards

The assels leased by the Company are real estate related:

Leasing when the Company is the lessee

The Company recoghnizes fight-of-use assets and lease liabifities arising from all leases in the balance sheet, with somse exceptions. This model
reflects that, at the start of a lease, the lessee always obtains the right to use an asset for a period of time and has an obligation to pay for that
right.

in the assessment of a lease the lease pon are sep: (rom non-{ease components and the lease term is defined based on
the contract lease term and when bly certain estimated extension or ination oplions are included.

The lease liability is initially measured al the present value of lhe lease paymems that are.not paid at the'’commencement date, discounted
normally using the Company’s 1 b ing rate. The i g rate is calculated considering interest swap rates, the credit
spread on bonds issued by real estale companies and the creditworthiness of the enmy that signs the lease. Lease payments included In the
liability are fixed payments, variable paymenis depending on an index or rate, residual values and penalties for termination of contracts.

The right-of-use assel is Inftially measured at cost, which equals the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives recelved plus any Initial direct costs, and restoration costs.

The Company applies thg recognition exemption for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value recognizing the
lease payments for those leases as an expense on a slralghl Iine basis over the lease lerm. The interest expense on lease liabilities is presented
as a component of finance costs sep from the deprech: harges for right-of-Use assets. [n the staterment of cash flows, cash payments
for the principal portion of the lease fiability is reported within fi inancing activities while payments for shor-term leases, low-value assels and
\lanable lease expenses not included in the measurement of the lease liability are classified within operating act dties. For more

regarding leasing, see note 18, “Leases.”

Leasing when the Company is the lessor

Leasing contracts with the Company as lessor are classified as finance leases when the majority of risks and rewards are transferred to the
lessee, and otherwise as operaling leases. Under a finance lease, a receivable is recognized at an amount equal to thé riet investment in the
lease and revenue Is recognized in accordance with the revenue recognition principles. Under aperating leases the equipment is recorded as
property, plant and equipment and as well as depreciation is recognized on a straight-ine basis over the lease term,

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. Regular purchases and
sales of financial assels are recognised aon the settlement date,

Financial assels are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Separate assels or liabilites are recognised if any rights and

are dor i in the transfer:

Financial assets are ‘initially recognised-at fair value plus ion costs for all ial assels not carriad at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or foss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income
slatement.

The fair values of quoted financial ir s and derivatives are based on quoted market prices or rates. if official rates of market prices are
nol available, fair values are by di ing the d future cash flows al prevaifing interest rates.

Financial assets 8l fair value through profit and loss

Derivatives are classified as held for trading, unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Derivatives are presented in the income statement either as cost of sales, other operaling income, financial income or financial expense,

. depending on the [ntent with the transaction.

Loans and receivables

Receivables are subsequently d at amortized cos| using the effective interest rate method, less allowances for impaimment charges.
Trade ivables include due from The balance rep: billed to as well as where risk and
rewards have been transferred to the customer bu! the invoice has not yet been issued.

Collectability of the i is d for purp of initia} recognilion.
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Accounting policies (continued)

El 31 {, fl q
Fir {

Impairment

At each balancc sheet date, the Company assesses whemcr there Is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financlal assets Is
An of imp of lvables Is p d when there Is objecthy that the Campany will not be able to collsct

all amounts due according lo the origingl terms of the receivable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, robabxl‘ly that the debior will enler

bankrupicy or financial reorganlzation, and defautt or deling in pay are that the trade recelvable [s Impalred.

Tha amount of the allowanca is the diffarence balwsen the assel’s camrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted al the original effective Interest rate! The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an affowance account, and the

amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within selling expenses. When a trade ivabla is finally blished as uncollectible, it
is written off against the a[lawanca accoun! for lrade receivables. Subsegquent ies of praviously wiillen off are credited to selling,
in the Incx

Financlal liabilities

Flnancial liabllities are ised when the C b bound to the 1al obligations of the I ! ial liabilitles are
derecognised when they are extinguished, La. whan the abligation specified [n the coniract s discharged, cancelled or axplre.s

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenily d at ised cost using the effective interest method.
Derivatives at fair value through profit and loss

Certaln derivative Instruments do not quafify far hedge accounting and are accounted for al !elr value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair

value of these derivativa instruments that do not qualify for hadge ing are I y In the income statement either as cost
of sales, other operating income, financial Income or financial expense, dependmg on the Intént of the !ransacﬂon

Inventories

Inventorles are measured at the lower of cost and net reafisable value, the cost Is determined under a welghted average basls. Net realisable
value is based on ostimated selling prico, less further costs dtobe dto and I. Risks of ab have been
measured by estimating market value based on future demand and changes In technology and customer acceptance of new products.

Contract work In progress includes amounts related to delivery type contracts and service contracts with angolng wark in progress.
Income taxes
Income taxes in the financisl statements include both current and deferred laxes, Income.laxes are reported in the Income stalemenl-unlass the

underlying item is reported directly in equity or OCI. For those items, the related income lax is also reported directly in equity or OC). A cument tax
liability or asset Is recognised for the estimated taxes payable or rafundable for the current year or prior years,

Deferred tax Is gnised for temporary dift bet the book values of assets and liabiliies and thelr tax values and for tax loss carry
forwards. A deferred lax asset Is recognised only 1o the extent that it is probabile that future taxable profils will be available against which the
deductibl porary difl and tax loss carry forwards can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised for the initial recognition of assets or

liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit or when it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is méasured at the tax rate that is expected to be applied to the temporary differences when lhey reverse, based on the lax laws that
have been d or sub ively d by the reporting date. An adj of defemred tax fliability bal due to a change in the
tax rate s recognised in the income s'alemenl unless it relates (o a temporary difference earfier racognised directly in equity or OCI, in which
casa the adj 1t is also gnised in equity or OCI.

The of tax assets involves jud regarding the deductibility of costs not yet subject lo taxation and estimates regarding
sufficient future taxable income to enable utilization of unused tax losses In different tax jurisdictions. All deferred tax assets are subject to annual
review of probable utilizatlon,
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Provisions
Provisions are mada when there are legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events and when it is probable that an outflow of

resources vill be required lo setile the dbligations and the amounts can be reliably estimated. When the effect of the time valua of money is
material, discounting is made of estimated outflows. However, the actual outflows as a result of lhe obligations may differ from such estimates.

The provisions are mainly refated fo restructuring, i proj and other obtigati and claims or obligations as a result of patent
infringement and other litigations.

A i Is 1d to have arisen when the Company has a delailed formal plan for the restructuring (approved by
management), which has been communicated in such a way that a valid expeclation has been raised among those affected.

Project related provisions include estimated losses on onerous contracts, contractual penalties and undertaklngs For losses on customer
contracls, a provision equal lo the total estimated loss is recorded when a loss from a contract is anticipated and possible to esti reliably.
These contract loss estimales include any probable penaities to a customer under a loss contract.

Cenizin present obligations are not gnised as provisions as il is not probable that an economic outflow will be reguired to selite the obligati
or the amount of the obligation cannot be ured with suffictent refiability. Such obligations are reported as contingent tiabliiiies.
Pensions

Pensians are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the Company’s only
obiigation Is to pay a fixed amount to a separate entity (d penslon trust fund} with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
suff aenl assets to, pay all employee benefits, The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employes. The expenditures for defined

ion plans are d as expen during the period when the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the
Company's obligalicn to provide aglead benefils to current and former employees. The related actuarial and Investment risks fall on the
Company.

pension sch for ils employ The assels of the

The Company operales two defined benefit pension schemes and a defined
schemes are held separately from those of the Company.

Pension scheme liabilities -are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit methad and are discounted at the curent rate of

retumn on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent termand currency to the liability. Pension scheé assets are L d using market values
at the balance sheet date.
The pensi hy assetis gnised in full on the balance sheet. The deferred Lax fiability relaling to a benefil asset is recorded separately in

provislons as a deferred tax liability.

Increases in the present value of the scheme liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the period are charged to operating profit. The
expected returmn on scheme assets less the incréase in the present value of scheme liabililles arising from the passage of time are included within
net finance charges. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in OC! in the period in which they occur.

Critical ting estimates and jud,

The preparation of fi ial st s and application of i d often involve management's judgement and the use of estimales
and assumpuons deemed lo be reasonable al the time they are made However, other results may be derived with different judgements or using
different assumptions or estimates, and events may occur that could require a material adjustment to the cartying amount of the asset or liability
affected. The following are the accounting policies subject to such judgements and the key sources df eslimiation uncertainty that the Company
believes could have the most significant impact on the reported résults and financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

Accounting policies (continued)

Critical Ing estl and judg (continued)
Revenuc recognition

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Company uses esti and judg fn d tning the and timing of revenue under IFRS 15, particularly when determining the
transaction price and ils allocation to perf bligatit identified under the contract. Transaction price may consist of variable alaments
such as discounts, perfarmance rala(ed pﬂce and [ Ti price, including variabl is d al the

of the contract (and p y fter). Judg Is used in the estimation process based an historical experience with the

type of business and customer,

IFRS 15 also requi lo be alk d lo each peri ligations by reference to their standalone selling prices. The Company
constders that an adj d market pp should ba used 1o estimate stand-alone sefling prices for its pmducls and services for
the purposes of allocating transaction price. These estimates are comprised of prices sel for similar and cisc djusted to
reflact appropriate profit margins forlne markel. Discounts relating to specific performance obligations are Included in their respective s!andalone
selling prices. The method of ali i pnce to each performance obligations based on thelr respecl]ve standalone selllng prk:es
mcans that discounts that do no! relate lo specific per g will be allocated propor y to each p we

Judgments made In relation to Ing pollcl lied

M ‘applies judg when g the ct r's ability and b ion to pay in a contracl. The assessment is based an (he latest
customar credit standing and the customer's pasl payment history. This assessment may change during the contract execution, and lf there Is
evl of In the rs ability or ion to pay, then under IFRS 15 no further shall be gnized until the

callectability criteria Is met. Conversely, this assessment may also change favourably over time, upon which revenue shall now be recognized on
a contract that did not initially mest the collectabllity criteria.

Ravenus for products shall be Ised when cantrol over the equip is ferred to the al 3 point in time. This

assessment shall be viewed from a idaring indi such as transfer of tiies and risks, customer acceptance,
plysical possassian, and bifling rights. Judgmem mny bc appllcd ind mether risk and ds have been ranslerred to the customer

and whether the 1 has d the prods In a salg of software licence, judgment may also be applied 1o determine when the
software Is made available to the by idering whaen they can direcl lhe use ol, and abtain subslantially all the benefits of, the licence.

Often all Indicators of transfer of control are assessed together and an overall judgment formed as to when transfer of control has occurred in a
customer contract.

Revenue for cuslomised solutions shall be recognized over time if progress of completion can be rellably measured and enforceabla right to

paymenl exisls over the duration of the contract. The prog of V is d by { to lhe output dehvarad such as
of and Judg! are applied when ining the approp! b that

best refiect the progress of completion and are aligned wnlh key accaplance slages within the contract.

Trade and rer fi ivab}

The Company monitors the financial stability of its customers and the environment in which they operate to make estimat
regarding the likelihaod that the Individual recelvables will be pald. Credit risks for outstanding customer finance credits are
regularly assessed as waell, and allowances are recorded for estimaled losses.

Deferrud taxes

Deferred tax assels are gnised for porary diffl 1 lhe canying amounts for financial reporting purpases of assets and
liabilities and the amounts used for ion purposes. The valuation of tax asscts is based upon management's estimates of future
laxable income in different tax jurisdictions. .

Accounting for Income, value added and other taxes
Accounting for these items Is based upon evaluation of income, value added and other tax rules In all ]urisdlcuons where we perform acﬂvlﬂes

The total complexity of rules related to taxes and the accounting for these require g 's invoh in judg g g
classification of trar ions and in esti of p t of claimed deductions and/or d
Provisions

Provisions are made when there are legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events and when it is probable thal an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the aobligations and the amounts can be reliably estimated. When the effect of the time value of money is
is made of esti outflows. Hi , the actuat as a result of the abligations may differ from such estimates.

The provisions are mainly related lo restructuring,customer projects and other obligali such as unresolved Income tax and value added lax
issues, claims or obligations as a result of patent infringement and other litigations, ier claims and finance g

A e i bligalion is considered to have arisen when the Company has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring (approved by
management), whlch has been communicated in such a way that a valid expectation has been raised among those affected.

Project related provisi include est d losses on onerous contracts, contractual penalties and undertakings. For losses on customer
contracts, a provision equal lo the total estimated loss is recarded when a loss from a is P and p to esti refliably.
These contract loss estimates include any probable penalties to a customer under a loss contract.

Pensions

Accounting for the costs of defined benefil pension plans is based on actuarial valuations, relying on key esti ford rates, exp
return on plan assels, f\nure salary Increases, employee mnaver ratas and mortalily tables. The discount rate assumptions are based on rates for
high-quality fixed with durations as close as possible to the C y's ion plans.

A
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2 Revenue

All revenue Is derived from the main activily of the company. An analysis of revenue by geographical market is given below, based on the region .

in whichthe order is received:

2020 2019
’ £000 £000

UK ) . 430,795 407,883
Rest of Europe 19,930 17,307
Other . . 615 39
] 451,340 425,229

During the year three customers, from the UK geographical market, individually contributed io more than 10%.of the company’s total revenue. The
total value of revenue dérived from these three customers amounted to £324.1m (2018: four customers; £368m).

Ali revenue is derived from the main activity of the pany. An analysis of | by gory is givén below, based on the commodity in which
the order is recelved:

2020 2019

£000 £000

Intemal cost recovery 20,968 24,104

External sales:

Customer support 312,532 304,423

Hardware ’ 65,194 44,647

Software 52,645 52,055

451,340 425,229

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

2020 2019
£000 £000
Contract assels | 713,480 14,861

Contract fiabilities 49,762 34,018

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and how
much relates to performance obligations that were salisfied in a prior year:

Revenue recognised in the year 2020 2019
. £000 . £000
Revenue recognised in the year related to the opening contract liability balance 26,154 26,515

Unsatisfied long-term contracts

The following table shows isfied performance obligations resulling from contracts:
2020 2019
£000 £000
Unsatisfied long-term contracts '™ 233,927 174,613
Management expects that 80% of the tr price allocated to the unsatisfled contracts as of 31 December 2020 will be recognised as

revenue during the nex! reporting period. The remaining 10% will be recognised in Lthe 2021 financial year or later.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3 Operating profit

This Is stated aftor charging:

2020 2019
£000 £000
Depreciation of owned fixed assets 460 1,278
Depreciation of Right to use Assels 3,280 5,330
linpainment of Right to use Asset . - 2,742
Auditors’ remuncration - for audit of the Company's and parent financial ststements 135 194
For 2020, The Eri Group has ged {0 @ ised audit opp , the centralised fees are paid by Ericsson Limited for itself and other
subsidiary company’s in'the group, including the iniés Immgediate parent undertsking Ericsson (Holdings) Limited. The Company does nol
recharge these fees.
4 Staff costs
2020 2019
£000 £000
Wagss and salaries 111,191 109,155
Social security costs 13,240 13,302
Other pension costs:
Oefined benefit pension costs 1,183 1,364
Defined contribution pension costs . 81473 7.919
) 133,787 131,740
The hly ge number of émployees during the yoar was as loflows:
2020 2019
No. No.
Services 1,204 1,246
Research & development 10 10
Sales and marketing n 80
1 & ation 127 131
1,418 . 1,467

See note 19 for disclosure on directors’ emoluments and the number of directors who are accruing benefits under the defined benefit scheme.

5 Taxation

a. Tax expense

2020 2018

£000 £000
Current lax:
UK cument incoms tax i - -
Adjustments in respect of prior years :2,276 {3.779)
Total cumrent tax . 2,276 {3.779)
Dcferred tax:
Origination and ¢ | of y diff 2,958 {152)
Effect of rate change (105) (1.174)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 442 1,675
Total defered tax P 3,296 348
Tax on profit 5,572 (3.430)
The year end balance for current income ax is as follows:

2020 2019

- £000 £000

Current income tax recelvable/(payable) 1,140 4,855
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5 Tax expense {continued)
‘b. Factors affecting tax charge for year

The UK standard rate of tax was 19% In 2019-and 2020. As the 17% CIT rate was legislated to take effecl from 1 April 2020, the 17% rate was
-used for the calculation of the deferred tax in FY 2019, It has been reversed in FY 2020, as the CIT rate remained 19%.

2020 2019

£000 £000
Profit before taxation 10,559 15,906
Profit at standard rate 19.00% (2019: 19.00%) 2,006 3,022
Effects af:
Exp not d ible for tax purp 951 28
Pension timing differences recognised through OCI - (3.202)
Adjustmients in respect of prior years, 2,718 (2,104)
Effect of rate change (105) {1.174)
Total lax (credit) / expense for the year 5572 (3.430)

¢. Deferred tax liability

A defeired tax liability of £24.2m (2019: £21.1m), Was recognised in the books at 31 December 2020. Il is payable.in more than one year.

2020 2019

£000 £000
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 5,232 3,696
Pensions (30,528) (26,524)
Other temporary differences 1,074 1,729
Total deferred tax lability (24,222) (21,099)

2,020 2,019

£000 £000

. recognised in the financial slat s

At 1 January (21,099) (29.778)
Adjustments . -
Charge to income statement (3,296) (349)
Recognised in OCH 172, 8,028
At 31 December ) (24,222) (21,089)

d. Factors affecting current and future tax charges

At Spring Budget 2021, the government announced legislation setling the Carporation Tax main rate (for all profits except ring fence prol'rls) al
25% for the year starting 1 April 2023. If the deferred tax all reverses at 25% the impact would be approximately £7.6m.
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6 Dividends
Finance incoma: 2020 2019
£000 £000
Interim paid : £0.30418 (2019:£0.23764) per share: £16.0m (2019: £12.5m) 16,000 12,500

Interim dividend payment of £16.0m (2019: £12.5m) was made during the year. The directors do nol propose a final dividend In respect of 2020
(2019: £Nil).

7 Finance income / (expensae)

Flnance Income: 2020 2019
£000 E0DO
Interest receivabla and simlar incoma: - 6
Foreign exchange gains . 84 133
84 139
Finance expense: 2020 2019
£000 . £000
interest due {0 group companies -{5,606) (5.865)
Interest and finance charges paid/payable for lease liabilities (768) (1.032)
6.374) (6.897)
On 16 June 2016 a lang term loan agreement from the ullimate parent undertaking and ling parly Telelonakliebok LM Ed was
signed by the pany. The loan Is In full {including arly accrued interests) in S years time from the date of disbursement, with Interast

belng charged quarterly caleulated at LIBOR plus agreed markup, and payable on the kst day of the quarter,

8 Property, plant and equipment

Leaschold Plant& Assots under
bulldlpg's machlnery construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost:
At 31 Decarnber 2018 4,141 13,816 169 18,126
Additions 1 G4 4 69
Transfars ‘_IGQ - {169) -
Disposals - (2.687) - {2,687)
At 31 December 2020 4,311 11,193 4 15,508
Accumulated depreclation:
At 31 December 2019 481 12,142 - 12,623
Provided during the year . 430 30 - 460
Disposals - {2.145) - (2.145)
At 31 D ber 2020 911 10,027 - 10,938
Net book value:
At 31 December 2020 - 3,400 1,166 4 4,570
At 31 December 2019 3,660 1674 169 5,503

Assels under construction relate to the capitalised costs of establishing a secure areas within existing premises occupied by Eri Limited.
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9 Inventories
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2020 2019
X £000 £000
Work in process and goods in transit 20,712 19,364
Finished goods and goods for resale 2,610 3,625
23,322 22,989

In 2020, a total of £49.04m (2019: £50.5m) of inventories was included in cost of sales as an exp This includes an amount of £0.19m (2019: .

£0.08m) which rep. the all for obsol ce.
10 Trade and other receivables

2020 2019
£000 £000
‘Trade receivables 109,262 73,277
Allowances for impaiment (34) (31)
Net trade receivables 109,228 73,246
Amounts owed by group undertakings 45,339 84,401
Prepayments 1,378 5,094
155,945 162,741
Included within the amounts owed by group undi gs are loan t amounting to £4.7m (2019: £4.7m) which are unsecured, have no

fixed repayment date, and on which no interest Is eamed. All other inter-company balances aré due to normal trade and are receivable on group
standard payment terms (30 days net) wilh no extended credit.

Trade receivables are primarily denominated In sterting, with £0.3m being denominated in US doflarsfUS dollar linked currencies (2019: £0.48m)
and €£13.74 being denaminated in Euros (2019: £4.27). The book value of trade and other receivables is consistent with fair value In the current
and prior year.

A balance of £0.2m, due to sale of equipment with éxténded terms and due dales, previously owned by the company is included in non current
assets. .

Movement In allowances for impalment

2020 2018
£000 £000
Balance at 1 Janvary (31) (209)
Additions (318) (1,233)
-Utilisation 315 1,41
Balance at 31 December (34) (31)
Aging analysis as at 31 December 2020
Of which past due and
Of which past due in the impaired in the following time
. following lime intervals intervals
Of which neither Of which
Amount impaired nor past impaired, not less lha: %0 90 days or more less \ha:a_SO % dany;?;
due pasl due ays e
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £600
Trade receivables 109,262 107,668 - 1,201 269 - 34
Allowances for
impaifmen @4 : : . . S <)
Net trade receivables 109,228 107,668 - 1,291 269 - -
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10 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Aging analysls as at 31 December 2019

Of which past dus In the foliowing Of which past due and impaired

time intervals in the lollowing time intervals
OI which neither Of which
A pai nor past impaired, not less lha;:o 90 days or more less u\a:ﬂso % dax'sd::
due past due b v
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade recelvables 73,277 69,377 - 3,797 72 - 31
Allowances for
impainment @n - - - - - 31)
Net trade recelvables 73,246 69,377 - 3,797 72 - -

Cradit risk in trade receivables
Credit risk Is divided Into three categories: credit risk in trade receivables, customer finance risk and financial credit risk.

Credil risk In trade recelvables Is g d by a policy applicabls for all legal entities in Ericsson. The purpose of the policy is to:

« Avold credit losses througt ishing internal dard credit approval routines In all Edcsson legal entltles

« Ensure monitoring and risk mitigation of dafaulting acoounts, i.e, evenls ol non-payment and/or delayed payments from customers
- Ensure efficient credit management within the Company and thereby irmprove Days Sales Outstanding and Cash Fiow

+ Ensure payment terms are commerciatly justifiable

+ Define lation path and appi ] process for pay terms and customer credit limils.

The credit of all is ar and a credit limit is set. Through credil gel system functionalily, credit
checks are perfarmed avery lime a sales ordnr or an invoice is gencrated [n the source system. This is based on the credit risk set on the
customer. Credil blocks appear if the cred!t imit set on customer Is exceeded or if past due receivables are higher than permitied levels. Release
of a credit block requires authorization.

Letters of credits are used as a method for securing payments from customers operating in ging In particular in markets with
unstable political and/or économic environment. By having banks ‘corifirming the letters of credit, the political and ial credit risk
to Ericsson arc mitigated.

Trade receivables amounted to £109.2m (2018: £73.2m). Provislons for ] tosses are regulatl and d to £0.0m (2019:
£0.0m). Ericsson’s nominal credit losses have, however, historically been low. The five largest wslomevs are the main telecom operators in the
UK and represent 93.7% (2019: 91.8%) of the lolal trade receivables.

11 Cash and cash equivalents
2020 2019
£000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 63,594 27,249
63,594 27.249
12 Trade and other payables
2020 2019
£000 £000
Trade creditors 32,393 30,775
Amounts owed to group undertakings 141,184 101,273
Taxation and social security 22,221 19,255
Accruals and deferred income R 44,633 53,810
240,431 205,113
On 16 June 2016 a long term loan agreement from the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party Telefonaktiebol LM Eri 1 was

signed by the company. This foan amounted to £70m and was used to clear the outstanding overdraft within the cash poolxng facility at that time,
The loan is repayable In full {including any accrued interests) in 5 years time from the dale of disburseinent, wilh interest being charged quarterty
calculated at LIBOR plus agreed markup, and payable on the last day of the quarter.

See Note 21 for Post Balance Sheet Events an the restructuring of this loan on the 22nd June 2021.

All other inter- pany are payable on group dard repay terms (30 days net) with no extended credit.
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13 Provisions

Onerous
customer .
LTV sch R ring Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Al 1 January 2020 372 5411 1,583 7,336
Additions - 3,400 681 4,081
Reversals - (372) (206) (1,032) (1,610)
Ulitisation - (3,403) (345) (3.748)
At 31 December 2020 ) - 5,202 857 6,059
Of which:
Non-current [iabiliies . . 1,608 - . 1,608
Current liabifities - i 3.594 857 4451

Onerous contract provislon

Onerous contract provision of £nil (2019: £0.4m) retates to loss on customer contracts where the expected tolal revenues will not be sufficlent to
cover the expected total contfact costs.

Restructuring provisien

At 31 December 2020 the provision of £0.9m (2019: £1.5m) represents the restrucluring provision lor severance and other termination costs
provided for in relation to the inuing cost reducti undertaken by the company. The overall provisian is.ex| d to be realised by
the end of 2021.

Long Tenm Variable pay

As at 31 December 2020 the provision of £5.2m (2019 £5.4m) represents the. estimated cost of Long Term Varable pay compsnsation.

There are two plans.

The Plans aré cash-settied plans.. Employees are selected as participants’ lly thraugh a nomination process. ParUcipanls are
assigned a potential award based on a percentage of their annual gross safary, which is converted into a number of synthetic shares based on the
same market price of Ericsson B shares used for the respective year's LTV,

One plan is a retention plan, therefore there are no performarice criteria for vesting of awards. In general, there is a three-year service period for
receiving the award in full and the award is subject only to continued employment-during the service pericd.

On the second plan the vesting leve! of the award is subject to the achievement of the same performance crileria over the same performance
period defined for the respeclive year and generally requires thal the participant retains his or her employment over the-vesting period.

At the end of the vesting period, the allotted synthetic shares are converted into a cash amount, based on the market price of Ericsson B shares
at Nasdaq Stockholm at the pay-aut date, and this final amount Is paid to the participant in cash gross before tax.

14 Share capital

Authorised

2020 2019
£000 £000
31,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 31,000 31,000
139,000,000 Redeemable ordinary shares of £1 each 139,000 139,000
170,000 170,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
2020 2019
£000 £000
30,600,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 30,600 30,6060
22,000,000 Redeemablé ordinary shares of £1 each 22,000 22,000
52,600 52,600

The redeemable ordinary shares can be redeemed at par by the company giving notice in writing of not less. than one manth. Both classes of
shares of the company rank parri passu In all respects.
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15 Retained eamings

Retalned Total
Share capltal earnings equity
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2019 52,600 95,555 148,155
Profit for the year - 19,336 19,336
Transactions with owners: ’
Dividends paid - {12,500) (12,500)
Other comprehonsive Incoma:
Actuarial loss on penslon - (50.834) (50.834)
‘Related deferred tax - 9,028 9,028
“At 31 Décember 2019 ' 52,600 60.585 113,185
Profit for the year - 4,987 4,987
Transactions with owners:
Dividends paid (16,000) {16,000)
Other comprehensive Income:
Actuarial loss on pansion - (4.246) (4,246)
Related deferred tax - 172 172
At 31 December 2020 52,600 45,498 98,098

16 Lease liabilities

Leasing with the Company as lessee

In January 2019 Ercsson applied the new lease standard [FRS 16, which replaced IAS 17 Leases and the related [nterpretations IFRIC 4, SIC-15
and SIC-27. The definiton of a lease Is ded which Imp. the acc ing both from a lesses and lessor perspaclive. The new standard will
put lcased assels on the balance sheet.

i) Right of use assets

Buildings ’ 2020 2019
£000 £000

Opening balance at 1 January 2019 ) 12,512 18,954
Deprediation charge of right of use assels (2,647) (3.710)
Retirements - cost (3,967) -
Impaimment charge of right of use assets - (2.728)
Relirements - depreciation 2,764 -
Closing balance at 31 December 2019 8,659 12,512
Vehicles 2020 2019

. £000 .__£D0D

Opening balance at 1 January 2019 2,769 4,275
Depreciation’charge of right of use assets {1.01%) (1.493)
Additions 181 -
Retirements - cost (327) -
Impairment charge of right of use assets - (13)
Retirements - depreciation 180 -
Closing balance at 31 December 2019 1,812 . ) 2.769
Closing balance of right of usc asscts at 31 December 2019 10,471 15,281

ii) Lease liabilities

2020 2019

Lease liabiliies- £000 -£000
Non-current 10,376 13,780
Current 3,308 5623
13,685 19,403

2020 2019

£000 £000

[ 1 es {inciuded in i costs) ' (768) (1,032)

Total cash outflow for leases during the financial year 3,435 4,871
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17 Financial risk management and financial instruments

The Company’s capital and ial risk mar policies are governed at the Ericsson Group level.

Capital Management

Ericsson Group defines its managed capital as the total of Company’s equity, therefore uses Equity / Total Assets ratio as a measure of
delermining the appropriate capital structure of ils group companies.

The capital structure Is r d by g equity, | pany loans and liquidity In such as way that the Company secures funding of its
operations In a cost effective way for the Ericsson Group.

The Company achieves its funding needs solely through Ericsson Group Treasury and does not negaliate any external barrowing Independently,

This provides financial flexibility and indi di {0 operate and ge variations in working capital needs as well as fo capitalize on business
opportunities.
The Company strives to finance growth, normal capital expenditures and dividends to Ericsson Group by generating sufficient positive cash flows
{rom operating activities.
Capital objectives informiation:
2020 2019
£000 £000
Equity 98,098 113,185
Tola) assels 459,002 423,385
Equity ratio 21.4% 26.7%
Cash flow from operating activilies 62,651 27,127
financial Management
The Company’s financial risk gt policy is primarily driven by Ericsson Group Tréasury. The priricipal role is lo ensure that appropriate
financing Is in place to manage the Company's hquld»ty as wall as financlal assets and Iiabthes and to control financial ﬂsks ‘exposures ina
manner consistent with ying busi risks and | policies. The Company does not undertake any local hedgi:

Foreign exchangeé risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk in the nommal course of business for transactions not denominated In GBP Stering. For
intercompany transactions, Ericsson Group Treasury seeks to minimize such risk by dictaling the currency of trade between the Company and ils
group undertakings.

Although the Company does not undertake any local hedglng activities, lhe Ericsson Group policy is to hedge the transaction exposure in its
subslidiaries' balance sheet (i.e. rade receivables and payables) through Gffselting d . Therefore the Company Is obliged to enter into
such offsetling derivatives transaction with counterparty Enssun Graup Treasury at the end of each month. The value of such outstanding
derivatives, all maturing within 30 days, at year end was ENil receivable (2019: £Nil).

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through market value fluctuations in certain balance sheet.items and through changes in interest
revenues and expenses. The net cash position at year end was £63.6m (2019: £27.2m net cash). There were no interest bearing fiabilities at year
end (2019: £nll)

Cash or overdraft balances are managed through a cash pooling arrangement, subject to floating rates applicable to the cash pooling
arrangement with the Ericsson Group Treasury. No assets or fiabililies are subject to fixed interest rate exposure.

The Company policy is to avoid a significant fixed rate expasure in il assets and liabilities.
Price risk

The Company Is exposed lo low price risks due to prices being regulated at a Group fevel. The Company receives market support and has
transfer pricing arrangements in place with the Group company.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is that the Company is unable to meel its shorl-term payment obligations due lo insufficient funds or iliquid cash reserve. The

Compariy minimizes the liquidity risk by maintaining a sufficient net cash position and having Ericsson Group Treasury loan facifities in place to
meet potential funding needs.

All financia! instruments of the company fall under level 3 of Lhe falr value hierarchy.

During 2020, net cash balance increased from £27.2m net cash to £63.6m net cash.

The entire cash bal is held with ble financlal i
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17 Financlal risk management and financlal instruments (continued)

Carrying of fi lal inst
Trade Trado payables
reccivables & Lease &
Intercompany liabilities  Intercompany
{note 10) (note 16) {note 12) 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £0600
Loans end receivables 154,567 - - 154,567 157,647
Financial fiabiftles at amortised cost - {13,685) {173,577) (187,262) (151.451)
Total 154,567 (13,685) (173,577) (32,695) 6,196
The following table shows is of financial liabilities, including lease liabiliies by contractual maturity.
* Lease liabllities Trade Total
payables &
Intercompany 2020
. £000 £000 £000
Less than 1 year 3,308 173,577 176,386
1-3years 3,708 - 3,708
3-5years 3,100 - 3,100
More than 5 years . 3.568 - 3.568
Total ) 13,685 173,577 187,262
Lease lisbilities Trade payables Total
& Intercompany 2019
£000 £000 £000
Less than 1 year 5,623 132,048 137,671
1-3years 5,530 - 5,530
3-5years 3,510 - 3,510
More than § years 4,740 - 4.740
Total 18,403 132,048 151,451
18 Pension commitments
The company operates two final salary d d hi the L Benefits Scheme ("EEBS") and the Ericsson Marconi
Penslon Plan ("EMPP") and the Edcsson Televisun Defined Beneﬂ Schems All me sdlamss are closed io new entrants and lo futlure accruals
for exlsting members. In addilion, the ad ne wilh dafined benalit underpin - the Ericsson Television

Pension Plan. The Ericsson Television Pension Plan was closed to lulure defined benefit accrual as at 31 May 2016. The assets for each
scheme are held separalely from those of the Company In independently administered funds. The trustee boards are composed of

from both employers and plan members. The trustee boards of the schemes are required by law to act in the interest of the fund
and of altrelevant stakeholders In the scheme, l.e. active employees inactive employees, setirees, employers. The tristee boards of the schemes

are ible for the | policy with regard to the assets of the fund.
On the 31st January 2019 Ericsson Limited became the sponsoring employer for two funded pensions previously belonging to Eri Tel
Limited (Ericsson Televsion Definad Benefit Sch and Erl 1 Television Pension Plan, as d above), a 5t Yy ber of the
same group as the Company On the 31st January 2019 a deed of amendment was completed lo apportion the assets and obligations of the
h from € Television Limited to Ei Limited on pletion of the Mediakind trar i Frum 31 January 2019
Enzsson Television Limited settled Its obligation relating to the pension scheme and Eri Limiled b the sp g employees to the
g bers of the sch
The pension assel comprises: .
2020 2019
£000 £000
Defined contribution scheme with underpin (26,745) (23,232)
Defined benefit scheme 187,420 174,761
160,675 151,529

There are no amounis of unpaid contributions at the year end relaling to the defined benefil scheme or the defined cantribution scheme as all
payments were madae within the month due.

Admi costs i d to and govem the pension plan have been expensed through the income statement. Administration
costs incurred for directly managing the plan assels such as fees paid to the bank for assel management services and salaries of the
board who ge the trust are included in the retumn in plan assets.

A .
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18 Pension commitments {continued)

The sch ypically expose the C to ial risks such as: investment risk, interes! rale risk, longevity risk and inflation. In addition the
defined contribution scheme with 2 defined benefit underpin has annuity risks.

Investment risk - The present valug of each scheme's liability Is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to high quality corporate
bond yields; if the retum on the scheme assel is below this rate, it will create a scheme deficit. Due to the long-term nature of the scheme

liabilities, the board of the jon fund iders it appropriate that 3 reasonable portion of the scheme assels should be invested in equity
securities snd rea) estate lo leverage the retum g d by the scheme. As the defined contnbution scheme with lhe defined benefit underpin is
primarily a defined contribution arrangement, the board of thls scheme considers it appropriate to Invest the majority of the scheme's assets in
equily'funds.

Interest risk - A decrease in bond interest rate will increase the flabilities; however, for the defined benefit scheme, this will be pariially offset by an
increase in the retum on the plan's debt i its, The of the defined benefit schemes have substanlially hedged the assels against
interest rate risk, refative o a gilts . Therefore the key relative to the accounting assumptions for the defined benefit schemes
relates to in ‘bond spreads.

Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan Gability is calculaled by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and afier thelr employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the scheme's liability.

Inflation risk - The present value of the defined benefit liability is linked to inflation, and higher Inflation will lead to higher liabilities. The majority of
the scheme’s assets however are aligned to movements in liabilities due to the hedging amangements in place, with the exception of the defined
contribution scheme, where assets are only loosly lated with inflati ing that an increase in inflation will increase the deficit shown in
respect of this Plan .

Defined benefit pension schemes

Actuarial valuations for scheme funding purposes were carried out at 31 December 2018 EMPP and EEBS and 30 September 2017 for ETDBS. The valuations
have been updaled at 31 December 2020 by a qualified and Independent actuary using revised plions thal are istent with the requi of S
19. Investments have been valued, for this purpose, at market value.

During the year.the paid cash ibuti of £9.5m for the EEBS scheme and £2.3m for the EMPP scheme, In accordance with the Schedule of
Contributions agreed with the pensions trustees during the year. Conlibutions are expected to be £2.8m and £0.6m in the coming year for EEBS and EMPP
respectively.

The major assumplions used for the actuarial valualion wera:

2020 2019
EEBS & EEBS &
ETDBS EMPP ETDBS EMPP
%o % % %
Rate of i in pensions in p ] 275 2,70 2.90 2.85
Discount rate 1.45 1.45 205 . 210
Inflation assumptions (RPI} 2.85 2.80 3.00 295
Inflation assumptions (CP!) [pre 2030 / post 2030) 1.85/2.85 1.80/2.80 2.00 1.95

For the purpose of 31 December 2020 actuarial valuation the discount rate is based on high quality corporate bonds rated AA by at least one of
two principle credit rating agencies and which have an outstanding debt issue of at least £60m. This Is consistent with the prior year.

The mortality assumptions used for the 2020 year end are the S3PA / S2PA tables with CMI 2018 improvements and a 1.5% lang term trend.
Average life expectancy for mortality tables used to determilne the defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2020 were:

2020 2019
Male Female Male Female
EEBS, EMPP & ETD8S :
Aged 65 now; averags life expactancy 222 245 219 239
Aged 45 now, ge life exp 1cy on reti at age 65 243 26.6 23.6 257

The market value of the assets in the scheme, the preseni value of the liabilities in the scheme and the expected rate of relurn at the balance
sheet date were:
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18 Pension commitments (continued)

Defined benefit pension sch {continued)

2020 2019

£000 £000
Equily investments categorised by risk: !
- Unguoted 201,472 : 49,677
- Quoted 12,593 148,545
Sublotal 214,085 198,222
Percentage of total asset 16.3% 16.9%
Bonds .
- Government (fixed linkéd) 258,720 209,698
- Govemment (index linked) 610,185 549,676
- Corporate bonds (investment grade) 85.013 80,749
Subtotal 953,818 840,123
Percentage of total assct 29% 71.8%
Property 4914 4,956
Percentage of total asset 0.4% 0.4%
Other 58,474 43,337
Percentage of total asset 4.5% 37%
Cash and cash equivalents categorised by risk:
- Quoled 71,874 69,564
- Unguoted 9,666 14,608
Subtotat 81,540 ) ‘84,172
Percentage of total asset 6.2% 1.2%
Total markel valus of assetls 1312911 1,170,810
Present value of scheme fablliles {1.125,491) . (996,049)
Net fon asset 187,420 174,761

The fair values of the above equity and debt Instruments are daetermined based on quoted market prices in active markets whereas the fair value
of properties are not based on quoted tnarket prices in aclive markels.

Changes in the present value of benefit obfigation: 2020 2019
£000 £000
Opening benefit obligation 996,049 822,540
Benefit obligation transferred in . 53,958
Interest cost 20,707 25,402
Past service cost 1,019 -
Benefits pald (27,668) (32,068)
Acluarial losses 135,384 126.217

Closling benefi oblig 1,125,491 ) 996,049
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Changes in the value of scheme assets: 2020 ‘2019

£000 £000
Openlng value of scheme assets 1,170,810 1,010,960
Value of scheme assets transferred in - 63,366
Interest income 24,488 31 370,
Employer contributions 11,865 11,851
Benefits paid {27,668) (32,068)
Expenses (1,183) (1.364)
Actuarial gaing 134,599 86,695
‘Value of scheme assets at end of year 1,312,911 1,170,810
Surplus recognised 187,420 174,761

2020 2018

_L£000 £000
Actual retum on plan assets 159,087 118,065
Analysis of the amount charged to opera'ting'pmﬁt:

2020 2019

£000 .£000
Adminisiration expenses (1,183) {1,364)
Net charged to operating profit (1,183) (1.364)
Analysis of the amount ¢harged lo net finarice charge_s:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Interest income on pension scheme assels 24,488 31,370
Interest expense on pension scheme liabilities (20,707) (25.402)
Net interest income 3,781 5,968
Analysis of the actuarial losses gnised in lhe of prehensive income:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Actual retum less interest income on pension scheme 134,599 86,695
assets
Experience losses arising on the scheme fiabilities 10,707 2,016
Changes in demographic assumptions (20,688) 17,129
C infi p underlylng the preserit {125,403) {145,362)
value of scheme fiabilities

(785) (39,522)

34
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18 Pension commitments (continued)

Movement in scheme surplus during the year:

2020 2019
£000 £000
Penslon schame surplus at start of year 174,761 188,420
Pension scheme sumplus transferred in - 9411
Administration expenses (1,183) (1.364)
Past Service Casts {1,019) -
Contributions 11,865 11,851
Net finance Income 3,781 5,968
Actuaria! losses {785) (39.522)
Pension scheme surplus at end of year 187,420 174,761
Slg; | ptl for the d ination of the defined bensfit oblig 1 are di rale:lc'u‘ f d ion and
monahty The sensltivity analyses below have bean determined based on ly possible changes of the respecli 15 ing
at the end of the reporting year, whila holding all olher assumptions constanL
EEBS & EMPP:
« If the discount rate is 0.5% higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would dy by £112.2m (increase by £129.5m).
« If the Infation rates are 0.5% higher {lower), the defined benefit obfigation would i by £95m (decrease by £86.3m).
¢ If the ke tancy increases (d ) by one year for both men and womnen, the defined benefil obligation would increase by £43.6m
(decrease by £43m).
ETDBS:
« If the discount rate Is 0.5% higher (lower), the defined benefit cbligation would di by £5.6m (increase by £6.2m}).

« If the inflation rates are 0.5% higher (lower), the defined benefit obligalion wotdd increase by £6m (decrease by £5.7m).

« It the life expectancy increases (decreases) by one year for both men and women, thy definsd benufil ubligation would increase by £2.8m
{decrease by £3.1m). '

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the aclual change In the defincd bcncf‘l obligation as i Is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isalation of one anather as some of the asst Jons may be

Furthemore, iIn presenting the above sensltivity analysls, the present value of the defined berefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefil obligation tiability
recognised in tha balance shasat.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used In preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The plan trustees and the Campany regularly review the plan's investment suralegy o ansure thal it remains appropriate for risk and retum

profilus,

As the plan Is closed to future accrual, employees pay no runher contributions la U plan The Company's funding requi its depend on the
level of any doficit in the plan and are based on the local

The ge duration of the defined benafil obligation at 31 D ber 2020 is 23 years (2019: 23 years).

The Company to makes a ibution of £3.4m to the defined bensfit schemes during the next financial year.

Defined contributi ton plan with defined benefit underpin

The Ericsson Telavision Limited Pension Plan ('ETPP') is defined contribution in nature but a defined benefit underpin applies up lo 1 June 2016.
After this date, employees moved to a defined t (see note 4). The Company pays contributions of 8% of pensionable
eamings into the DC amangement. tn addition, the Company will pay £25,000 per month in deficit recovery contributions towards the Old Section
until 30 June 2019 and £35,000 per month from 1 July 2019 10 30 sp.ptember 2027. The Company also made a one-off additional contribution to
the O!d Section of £7m on 24 December 2018. On 31 January 2019, a deed of amendment was completed to apportion the assels and
obligations of the Plan from Eri Television Limited to Eri Limited on ion of the Medlakind trar ion and from this date
Ericsson Television Limited has settled ils obligation relating to the Plan.

A member by member-valuation is carried out by a qualified and independent actuary using ions that are istent with the
of 1AS 19. Investments have been valued, for this purpose, at market value.

The major. plions used for the actuarial valuation were: 3
2020 2019
%, %
Net di rate underying annuity purch {2.45) (2.40)
Pre-retirement discount rate 1.45 205

Inflation assumplions 2.85 3.00




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9E36DE02-54804D6C-3466-DBBBBD325A58

EACcsson Limitea

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

18 Pension commitments (continued)

2020 2019
Male Female Male Female
Aged 65 now, average life expectancy 219 239 218 23.8
Aged 45 now; average life expectancy on relirement at 65 236 257 238 257

The market value of the assets In the scheme, the present value of the fiabililies in the scheme and the expected rate of retum at the balance

sheet date were:
f 2020 2019
% £000 % £000

Equity investments categorised by region:

UK 24,431 24,163
- Europe 8,508 8,417
- North America 8,508 8417
- Other ) 7.293 7.214
Sublotal 73% 48,740 76% 48,21
Bonds

- Govemment 15,224 12,109
- Corporate bonds {(i grade) 1,469 1,404
Subtotal 25% 16,693 21% 13,513
Cash 2% 1,646 - 2% 1,326
Tolal market value of assets 100% 67,079 100% 63,050
Present value of scheme liabiliies ) {93,824) (86.282)
Net pension Gabikty (26,745) (23,232)

The fair values of the above equity and debl instruments are determined based on quoted markel prices in active markets whereas the fair value
of praperties are not based on quoted market prices in active markets.

Changes in the present value of benefit obligation:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Benefit obligation at start of year/(transferred In prior year) 86,282 67.883
Interest expense 1,757 1,787
Benefits pald (270) (1.172)
Acluarial losses 6,055 17,784
Closing benefit obligation 93,824 86,282
Changes-in the value of scheme assets:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Opening vatue of scheme assets 63,050 55,941
Interest ineomg 1,285 1,474
Employer contributions 420 335
Benefits paid (270) (1:472)
Actuarial gains 2,584 6472
Value of schemie assets at end of year 67,079 63,050
Deficit recognlsed {26,745) {23,232)

2020 2019

£000 . £000
Actuél retumn on plan assets 3,879 . 7.946
Analysls of the amount charged to nel finance charges:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Interest income on pension scheme assets 1.285 1474
Interest exp on pension scheme liabilities {1.757) (1.787)
Netinterest expense (472) (313)
Analysis of the actuarial losses recognised In the of comprehensive income:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Actual retum less interest income on penslon scheme assets 2,594 6,472
Experience losses arising on the scheme fiabilities 3,875 {3.975)
Changes in demographic assumptions underlying the present value of scheme liabilities 180 1023 -
Changes i ial ptions underlying the it val f scheme liabiliti :

anges in present value of s me liabililes (10.1‘0 ‘4,632)

(3.461) (11;312)
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18 Pension commitments (continued)

Movement in scheme deficit during the year:

2020 2018

: £000 £000
Pension scheme defictt at start ot year/(transferred in prior year) (23,232) (11,942)
Contributions 420 335
Net finance income . (472) (313)
Actuarial (losses)/galns {3,461) (11,312)
Pension scheme surplus at end of year (26,745) ) (23.232)
Significant nl for the 2 of the defined benefit obiig are dl rate i and morlamy assumption.
The sensitivity analyses below have been d based on Y p changes of the respective assump K g al the end
of the reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant.
« If the discount rate Is 0.5% higher (lower), the defined benefit would decr by £12.6m ( by £15.1m):
+ | the inflgtion rales are 0.5% higher (fowér), the defined benefit obligation would Increase by £14.5m (decrease by £11.9m).
« If the lite 2 y increases {d ) by one yaar for both men and women, tha defined benefit obligation would Increase by £4.1m

{decrease by £4mn).

The sensitivity analysis prescnted above may not be representative of the actual changs in the defined benafit abligation as it is unlikely that the
change In assumptlons wauld occur In isolation of one another as some of the plions may be lated

The average dumslion of the defined benefit abligation at 31 December 2020 Is 29 years (2019: 29 years).
The Company expacls to contribute £0.4m to the Plan during the next financlal year,

19 Related parties

Parent and ullimate cantrolling party

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is Ericsson (Holdings) Limited. Its registered office being the 14th Floor, Thames Tower, Stalion
Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 1LX.

Tha ullimats parent undertaking and controliing party Is Telef M , a Company Incorporated in Swedan (which is domici|
in Sweden al Torshamnsgatan 21, SE-164 83 Stockholm) is the parem undenakmg of the smallest and largest group to consolidale lhese
financlal statements. Coples of the fi i of Tetef M Eri may be ined from www.er .com. *
Tr t with key g p nnel
Koy [ | I rised of the di noted in the Directors report
2020 2019
£000 £000
Salaries and short-term employee benefits 883 775
Company contributions pald to post-employment benefils X 19 17
902 792
2020 2019
No. No.
A of post loy benefits schemes 2 2
2020 2018
£000 £000
Highest paid director
Emoluments and amounts ble under ir i h 554 476

Other related party transactlons
Related party transactions during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
‘£000 £000
tmmediate & ultimate parent
- Interest on Group loan facility 5,606 5813
- Dividend paid 16,000 12,500
- Rechargas back 6,305 6.710

Fellow subsidiaries
- Sales 14,912 17.367
- Purchases . (222,653) (176,321)
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19 Related parties (continued_)

Other related party transactlons {continued)
Related party balances as al the year end are as follows:

2020 2019
£000 £000
Immediate & ultimate parent
- Recelvables 6,783 4,717
- Liabilities 67,347 70,151
Fellow subsidiaries
- Receivables 38,556 79,684
- Liabilites 70,942 31,122
A number of these companies cted with the Company during the year. The terms and conditions of these transaclions were no mare
f: able. than those ilable, or which might y be d to be ilable, in similar transactions with non-key management
personnelrelated companies on an arm’s fength basis. )
20 Commitments
Bank guarantees of £0,1m (2019: £0.1m) have been made to HMRC in the ordinary course of business.
21 Post Balaince Sheet Events
On 22 June 2021 a new loan ag L from the ullimate parent undertaking and controlling party Telefor bolagel LM Ericsson was signed
by the company. This loan amounied ta £50m, the prior loan between Ericsson Limited and Telef iebolaget LM Ericsso ted to £70m,

which has in part been pald, and the remalnder. rolled forward into this new foan amount. The foan is repayable in fuit (including any accrued
inlerests) in 1 years Iirné fram the.date of disbursement, with interest being charged quarterly-calculated at LIBOR plus agreed markup, and
payable on'the last day of the quarter.



